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I can assure you we've already done tha
had several sessions with counsel, afte

and so we'll do it as expeditiously as we

-- but all I'm saying to the jurors is to

sure you have something to pass a little b

the time. I know you get along well,

can hear as I go down the hall past the jur

room, but

MR . BOSTIC: Your Henox; I

apologize, we are going to

and we will call on behalf of David Matusiewic

Michael O'Rourke.

THE COURT:

been explaining to the jury the difficulties o

scheduling witneséés, Mr: Bestie, S0 Wwe
certainly understand.

MICHAEL T.

the deponent herein,

was

been duly sworn on oath,

examined and testified as

follows:
BY MRS BOSTIC:
Q. Good morning, Mr. O'Rourke.
A. Good morning.

becau,

O'ROURKE,

switch orders here

That's fine. I've %

having first

k&»dy + JVW)j T ’
Thank you borh
Jeny much | T
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0 How are you today, sir?
A. Very well, sir. Thank you.
0. Now, sir, state your name for the
rd so we have it clear for the jury?
A. Michael O'Rourke.
@, And how are you employed? }
A. Ie¥m~a private.investigator.
O And are you an employee or an
employer?
A. I'm an employer, yes.
Q. And what's the name of your
" private investigative services?
A. O'Rourke Investigative Associates,

e
Q.. And are you solo or how many
people do you have working for you?

A. Approximately 40 employees.

T T T— "
TR

Q. Approximately 40 employees. And

all conducting investigations or some support?

A. Some support staff and some

investigators, yes.

D Okay. How many investigators do

you have?

A. Say 32.

Hawkins Reporting Service
715 North King Street - Wilmington, Delaware 19801
(302) 658-6697 FAX (302) 658-8418
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0 32. And . the investiga;
you have, what's their general exper
background?

A. Primarily manage a grouw
rétired FBI, state police and municipa
military investigators.

Q. And how long have you been

O'Rourke Investigative Associates, Inc.?

he.
A. 17 years.
G 17 years. And with respect

your own background, do you have any law 20
enforcement experience in your own backgroun
A, WEEGESot
o »
Qi Okay. Have you ever, prior to 1l
0

opening up your investigation firm, were you
employed in any investigative capacity?

A. ‘I was. I was a contract
investigator and special process server for
Eamir v courE Eo RN a A TS .

QL Now, in order to be an -
investigator in the State of Delaware and to

have a firm, are there any licensing

requirements that you have?

A. o G ot i S A B G 10 1 5= s i

Hawkins Reporting Service
715 North King Street - Wilmington, Delaware 19801
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Q. And in connection with David
siewicz, there came a point in time that you
retained to do certain investigative work
ehalf of David Matusiewicz; is that right?
A. Thatts leorrect,. . yes.
Q. And would it be fair to say that
s in connection with a child custody type
aring at that time?

A. NG B

Ol Apd it was in the wieinity of
2005, 20062 i
A. January 2006, -yes.
% Okay. Now, with respect to that
investigation, and the work that you did t%en,
who hired you?

A. Mark Sisk, a Delaware attorney.

: ;>> Q- That was an attorney who
represented David Matusiewicz at the time?

A. Yies, that's 'correct.

Q. You see David Matusiewicz in the
courtroom today?

A. T doi

- SEe il mamoe
S R "
R ——— -
Eatiiondici. |

Q. He's the gentleman here with the

glasses sitting next to Ms. Chavar?

Hawkins Reporting Service
715 North King Street - Wilmington, Delaware 19801
(302) 658-6697 FAX (302) 658-8418
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A. He d:8 .

O Okay. ' Now, in connection witp
doing the investigative work at that time, were
you called upon to do certain surveillances?

A. Yes.

O Okay. And those were in

connection with Christine Belford?

A. That's correct.

[0)8 Okay. And did you employ Mr.

Phillips?

A. I did.

0 And did -- Mr. Phillips actually
conducted that surveillance on your behalf; is
that righc?

A. Yes, that's correct.

Q' And what's Mr. Phillips®

background?
A. United States Marine Corp, active
marine corp. He came to work for me as a

surveillance agent.

Q. Now, I believe also you were
requested and pulled certain, I guess
investigative reports, not credit reports, but

background reports on individuals connected to

Hawkins Reporting Service
715 North King Street - Wilmington, Delaware 19801
(302) 658-6697 FAX (302) 658-8418
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ltine Belford at the time? -
A. That's correct, yes.
58 Okay. Do you remember the names

-he individuals for whom you pulled reports
hisspoimt?
A. Yes, I believe it was -- it was

er father, James.

Q. What about a Mr. Purcell?

e A

A. Yes, not in 2006, but yes.

i P BN

Q. Okay. Now, I'm talking about what
you did on behalf of David Matusiewicz, but
we'll get to that particularly. Now, with
respect to the surveillance and the reports that
you pulled, how does that comport Lo —-— strzke
that. Were you ever involved in doing
investigative work in connection with child
custody matters prior to working on behalf of
David Matusiewicz?

A. Yes.

Q. And what type of documents and
investigations or things were you called upon to
collect in connection with that type of matter?

A. We would serve subpoenas for

medical records, school records, psychology

Hawkins Reporting Service
715 North King Street - Wilmington, Delaware 19801
(302) 658-6697 FAX (302) 658-8418
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4 
records, any kind of hospital records, any kin; th
of supporting documentation that would help | oF
assist proving neglect, abandonment. De

Q. In connection with those other an
matters were you also called upon to conduct st
surveillances? by

A, Yes.

Q. Were you also called upon to pull
the type of reports that Qe talked about,
background reports on individuals? Ct

A. Yes.

5 8% And do you have an understanding £
of how or the relevancy of such reporQF in
connection with child custody matters?

A. Yes, it would help gauge the i1
integrity, credibility, criminal history, any w:
type of history to help them evaluate their M:
ability to raise children. o:

Q. So the work that you did on behalf
of David Matusiewicz, how, if AR peeddidsthat
differ from what you've done in similar cases in ©
the past?

A. Very similar, vyes.

Qi Do you understand -- or strike =

Hawkins Reporting Service
715 North King Street - Wilmington, Delaware 19801 T

(302) 658-6697 FAX (302) 658-8418
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We talked about.you being licensed to

[A)

rate as an investigator in the State of

e

ware. Was a gathering of these materials
documents and these things and these
rveillance, are they sanctioned or prescribed
y your licensing requirement here in Delaware?

A. They are sanctioned.

Q. Okay.

A. Specifically under Title 24 f

Chapter 13. ’
Qs So. in other words, are these

things that you're permitted to do?

A. Yes.

3

Q. Okay. With respect to the
investigative work that you did in connection
Wwith the Christine Belford, did David
Matusiewicz ever ask you to do anythipg improper
or illegal or inconsistent with your license?

A. No.

Q. Did you ever do anything dmpeeper
or illegal or inconsistent with your license?

A. NOymeSdL o

Q. Now, there came a time in 2013

after the shooting incident at the courthouse

kb
13
£

: Hawkins Reporting Service
o 715 North King Street - Wilmington, Delaware 19801
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that you were contacted by the federal

government?

A. That's correct, and the State
police;

© 1'm sorryw, I didn't hear you.

A. And the state police.

Q. .Okay. And what did they request

of you in connection of that contact, concerning‘7

vyour files?

A. Everything in my possession and ap

interview.

Q. Okay. And did you have any
obligation prior to turning ovee your file to

any law enforcement individual®?

'ff . . A. I did, vyes.

Q. And what's that obligation, sir?

A. I needed -- it's attorney work
product, so I needed permission from the
attorney to disseminate my file.

O And did you seek that permission
from the attorney?

A, T=sdiids I contacted Mark Sisk
immediately.

(6] And what, if anything, did Mr.

Hawkins Reporting Service
715 North King Street - Wilmington, Delaware 19801
(302) 658-6697 FaAX (302) 658-8418
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,;k instruct you to .do?

A. To go to Gander Hill Prison and
+ Mr. Matusiewicz.and ask his permission.

@5 Okay. And did you do that?

A. Yes.

L And so you had a conversation with
‘pavid Matusiewicz, which would determine whether
ing | sor not you release his file, would that Dbe faizr
womeaY ==

an MR. WEEDE: I think we're getting

#nto hearsay, so I1'll just object now to table
ik

THE COURT: As part of the course
of events, without getting into subst;nce, M
O'Rourke, was the file turned over to state
poliscer

THE WITNESS: Yes, Your Honor, it
was.

MR. BOSTIC: Your Honor, may I see
the Court at sidebar, please.

(Sidebar discussion.)
MR. BOSTIC: All right. It's my
understanding that Mr. O;Rourke needed David's

approval to release the files to the government.

Hawkins Reporting Service
r 715 North King Street - Wilmington, Delaware 19801
b | (302) 658-6697 FAX (302) 658-8418
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THE COURT: Right.

MR. BOSTIC: And I want to ag
whether or not he spoke to David to get tha
approval. I'm not going to ask him what he

said, but I want to ask that question.

THE COURT: BUSNEighte I'm just

going to allow it.

:“.ff'é MR. WEEDE: Okay. I didn't hear

what he said, but --

THE COURT: He was going to ask

him did David Matusiewicz give his permission

and the answer is yes, that's as far as it's

{15  godmgtorgo.
; BY MR. BOSTIC:
! Q. Mr. O'Rourke, when you met with
David Matusiewicz about the release of his file,

did he give you approval to release to the

federal government? Did he give you approval to

do so?
A. Yes, he did.
MB:  BOSTIC: I have nothing else,
Your Honor.
THE €COURT: All xright. Will there

be cross by the Government before cross by the

Hawkins Reporting Service
715 North King Street - Wilmington, Delaware 19801
(302) 658-6697 FAX (302) 658-8418
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bl

gl.defense, Mr. Weede?-
f MR. WEEDE: Your Honor, if I may.
BY MR. WEEDE:

0. Mr. O'Rourke, how are you?

A. Very well, éir. Thank you.

Q. Good, good. . You spoke about being
licensed in the State of Delaware?

A. Yes.

(01 Right. ©Now, we're going to hear a
little bit from, I believe, Mr. Edelin about
some things you did in connection with Tom
Matusiewicz and Lenore Matusiewicz. Do you
recall those series of events?

A. Mees .

Q. Bil right. And I'm going to save

ey é | some of these questions for after Mr. Edelin
talksl——

to 3 £ MR. BOSTIC: wWhiEcElonpions
HeRBHES | ZEr s beyond 'my scope.

MR. WEEDE: I'm going to ask one
i; b simple follow up to whether or not --

THE COURT: I think he's

e ;; 3 previewing what he expects to ask later. We'll

see where it goes.

Hawkins Reporting Service
715 North King Street - Wilmington, Delaware 19801
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MR. WEEDE: Thank you, Your
BY MR. WEEDE:
Q. Was Tom Matusiewicz, to your
knowledge, ever a licensed private invest}
A. Not to my knowledge.

MR. BOSTIC: Again, Your Honor,

move to strike because it's all beyond my sc
1 MR. WEEDE: Your Honor, he asks

about James Belford's background check which

precisely when he was in Tom Matusiewicz's
employ.
THE COURT: I have a suspicion
we'll get to everything. Why don't you get
P
going and I assume the rest of this will be more;?
tailored to this direct.
MR. WEEDE: Yes, Your Honor.
BY MR. WEEDE:
(05 Mr. O'Rourke, with regard to your
employment by Mr. Sisk?
A. Sisilk.
Q. Am I saying that right?
A. Yes.

0. Brd 1t's falr to say 1it's typiesd

of your employ to be employed by an attorney?

Hawkins Reporting Service
715 North King Street - Wilmington, Delaware 19801
(302) 658-6697 FAX (302) 658-8418
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A. Tteass.typical, Jes.

6 In.-fact, would you say 99 percent
of the time you're employed by an attorney?

)r?; A. Yes.

Q. About that. And with regard to

the kind of the theme that Mr. David Matusiewicz
e, was pursuing, in terms of what he was directing

you to do, what was the theme of the evidence he
ias was asking you to gather?

A. At the time he had, he had custody
of the children. He was attempting to secure
that for a custody hearing that was coming up
sometime that spring, so he was looking for

Jre evidence to help support his perspecgive that he
was‘the better parent.

Cle Okay. &All right.. And you have a
lot of experience in forming this type of work;

T f right?
; A. I do, yes.
zé S, Q.. How much would you say of your
; business deals with custody proceedings?
A. Maybe 8 to 10 percent, maybe.
1 3 | Q. 80 --
| ' A. 8 to 10 percent, a small portion.

Hawkins Reporting Service
715 North King Street - Wilmington, Delaware 19801
(302) 658-6697 FAX (302) 658-8418
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Qs Okay. But what you do see whep

you're in custody proceedings; is it's, that'g
the chance that whatever parent hires you has t§3
get out all the dirty laundry about the other ;
parent, right?

A. That's accurate, yes.

Q. And fair to say it can be kind of
sordid proceedings?

A. That's also true, yes.

6 Sor@at this point in time David is
asking you to get whatever you can on Christine
Belford, correct?

A. BPhat"s ecorrect, yes.

Q5 And that informati;n ultimately
was presented to the family court in connection
with these custody proceedings, correct?

A. That's accurate, yes.

@) And ultimately that family court
concluded that the, Christine Belford and David
Matusiewicz would have joint custody, correct?

A. ¥esysirt, yes.

Q. And in fact, some of the
information that you gathered from your

investigative work and when I say your, I'm

Hawkins Reporting Service
715 North King Street - Wilmington, Delaware 19801 3
(302) 658-6697 FAX (302) 658-8418 f:
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lking about your company's work, right?

s B, ates
to, (0)8 That was also presented at the
termination of parental rights proceedings in
>12010 and 2011, correct?
“ A. es, Sir,
£ Q. And in the end, that court

' ultimately terminated David's parental rights?
A That's true.

Q. All right. Now, in connection

®

with, I believe, and again maybe I'm jumping the
gun here, but you were also approached by Amy
Matusiewicz?

MR. IBRAHIM: , Objection. I have

" 5,doﬂ2 s Fh no questions of this witness.

e

"M fle O RaciRe ‘ MR. WEEDE: = Your Honor, let's see
) Sy &

/fqaw44'ﬂj STy : ; .

' if Mr. Edelin opens the door on that. We have

- G Gy (,/,. an (A // - f

It G,/ (0 affer #/+ the e-mails. We specifically asked about the

g/Qc/‘}q fo set [ H ;

Fera " econmmbng 2013 time frame.

Hq At Avr7 7'*;"‘7 e

ccomrvrt Nelt
s c Aawmnrers,

THE COURT: Let's not make the

¥

=
) A C/

trailer better than the movie. Let's wait and
see where we go.
MR. WEEDE: That's all we have.

Actually, can I confer with counsel? All right.

Hawkins Reporting Service
715 North King Street - Wilmington, Delaware 19801
(302) 658-6697 FAX (302) 658-8418
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Your Honor, if I may just one more follow up

question?

THE COURT: You may.

BY MR. WEEDE:

Ok MeE, O'Rourke, now my co-counsel
eeTeEmmer i EORIRRENANeTE] 2t - the- tine-poriod
where your firm is being asked to do

surveillance on Ms. Belford,at-the time where

your firm is sending out subpoenas, at the time

when you're trying to gather as much informatio

as possible about Ms. Belford to show she's an
unfit mother, at this point has David
Matusiewicz ever made any al{egations of sexual
misconduct against Ms. Belford?

A No.

MR. WEEDE: That's all I have,

Your Honor.

THE COURT: Mr. Edelin -- do you

want to?

MR. BOSTIC: I"1k ‘wait unELl My

Edelin is finished.

i THE COURT: All right. Mr.
i Edelin, you have the floor.

BY MR. EDELIN:

Hawkins Reporting Service )
715 North King Street - Wilmington, Delaware 19801
(302) 658-6697 FAX (302) 658-8418
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0. Mr. O'Rourke, good morning.
A. Good morning, sir.
Q. How are you, sir?
A. Very well. Thank you.
Q. I think we met for the first time
a couple days ago last week?
A. Yes, we did.
Q. Good to see you again.
: A. You as well.
O) Sir, my understanding is there was

testimony earlier on in the case that you had
occasion to meet Tom and Lenore at Ms. Belford's
property, do you remember that?

A. You're speaking about Dezember Lsit
0fa 2012, correct:

Q% Yes, Sit. I believe that's the
date. My understanding is you accompanied or
escorted Tom up to the door to return some
items?

A. esymhat issscorrect.

©. My understanding, sir, from the
testimony is that Ms. Lenore was in the car, but

she did not accompany you to the door?

A. ThEt s correct:

Hawkins Reporting Service
715 North King Street - Wilmington, Delaware 19801
(302) 658-6697 FAX (302) 658-8418
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Q. Dibelkieve my recoliectionof “tha

testimony is ‘that Ms. Lenore stayed within her

s b s e

car, which was parked outside on the street, buf?
outside of the development?

A. It was actually in the development
in the very first street at the bottom of the
MWTN hill on the right-hand side. It was the first
]ij turnoff that was available inside the
i

subdivision.

MM Q. Okay. And then at some point Tom
1 gokmoutacf thaticar@got-in your car and then
you all drove to where the home was?
Ll A. Yes.
‘ 3
Q. Okay. sshndE¥s=farr to say you
had a very brief interaction with Ms. Lenore?

f‘ A. Yes, very brief.

_.-ﬁ‘___‘..

65 Hi, how are you, went on about

your business with Tom?

A. Yeah, just being polite.
MR. EDELIN: Thank you, sir.
Thank you, Your Honor.
THE COURT: All right. Mr.
Ibrahim, I understand you have no questions.

MR. IBRAHIM: I have no questions.

Hawkins Reporting Service
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The door is still closed.
MR. WEEDE: Do I get to cross the
zwitness?
MR. BOSTIC: Whatever, you can
Cross.
MR. WEEDE: Okay. Whatever the
EOREE ==
THE COURT: We have been
inconsistent in our methodology, counsel. So go
ahead, Mr. Weede, and then we'll allow Mr.
Bostic to come back and redirect.
MR. WEEDE: Thank you, Your Honor.
BY MR. WEEDE:
>

Q. Hello again. At the time when Tom
and Lenore Matusiewicz met with you on December
lst, 2011, did they tell you that they had --
they were gathering information in any way with
a legal proceeding?

A. Ehey . -- he wag.stildetsying £0
gather information for grandparent rights or
some . type ofwcusbedysrights, yes; T knew-that.

Q. Okay. And that goes back to some
€-mails you had with Tom going back to April

2011, is_that.singihg s hell?

Hawkins Reporting Service
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A. Yes.
Q. -And at that point, I don't th
there's any dispute, there was actually ; c

pending in Delaware Family Court, but dig he'
sz’

tell you that his petition for grandparent
visitation rights, his and Lenore's, was
 f} dismissed by the family court in November of
‘ 20T

A. No, I was not aware of that Tom
gave you that he wanted to go to 15 Donegal
Court, Christine Belford's residence?

A. He wanted to trade a family
heirloom quilt that Nana had knit, something
that was important to the chilaren when they

were younger, wanted to trade that for a SKIA

machine, from what I understand was some type of
electrical stimulation device used by autistic |

children and also asked if there were any home

movies or photographs or something else they
would could have that she would be willing to
share.

Q. This is an afghan?

A. Yes, approximately three feet by

four feet, lavender, gray and white.

Hawkins Reporting Service
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s And this was a family heirloom?
A. It was obviously hand made, yeah.
B Did it smell like anything?

A TERdid. It had a distinct odor of

ene.

Q' All right. Now, you know, to each .

MR. BOSTIC: Objection, Your

THE COURT: Sustained.

| BY MR. WEEDE:

Qs Now, is it fair to say that Tom
also took some photos of the residenc; when he
was .with you?

A. He did, yes, sir.

Q. 211 right. And there's basically

the front of the house?

A. Yes.
Q. Does that sound right?
A. Yes.

QL R S o o e And after this trip,
does Tom ask you to run some tags for some cars?

A. Yes, he did, one tag actually.

Hawkins Reporting Service
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Q. And what ‘did you do?
| A. *"'Ftold him that I couldn't do ik,
it was a violation of the driver's privacy
protection act of 1994. That he would have to
engage the services of an attorney so I would
have a lawful purpose in order to run the
registration with the Delaware DMV.

O Emdiritts  fair to say that he alss

continued to ask you for information as it

pertained to Christine Belford and family
members; is that right?

A. Yes.

Q. And this was the context of

running a background check on Christine

Belford's father, James Belford, correct?

A. Yes.

@.. All right. Can I have Government

‘% exhibit 576, please? Now, you at this point had
; already told Mr. Matusiewicz that you couldn't
run tags without an attorney, but first of all,
what are we looking at here?

A. Like me to describe it?

Q. Yes, please.

A. This is an e-mail from Tom
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lﬁiewicz, that's his e-mail :A1BBQ. Actually
;f it Christmas day tO'my.eAmail.address and
A:gad some requests. Now, this was four weeks
;er that occurrence in Donegal Court.

6 All right.  TI'"d like you to focus

paragraph two, if you could?

A. Yes, what vehicles currently are
f?égistered to Christine Belford, 15 Donegal
fourt, Newark, Delaware. One is the new one we
_§aw in the driveway at the residence, you
already have temp Delaware tag on the 2011 Chevy
“Equinox 4 door black sedan. Second vehicle
*maybe a newer black Chevy Suburban. She had a
#2010 Honda Odyssey, color purple. Don't.know i
she still hds 1t.

6)5 Dildssyou~run tags on any of. those

vehicles?

A. No, sir.

Q. Why not?

B

. i A. Again, I didn't have a permissible
purpose. I can't tell you if I even responded
o, thisy -ddenlt know-

MR. IBRAHIM: What was that

exhibit number?

-
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MR. WEEDE: 576.

BY MR. WEEDE: -

018 Now, there have been some Page

that have been shown to the jury from a rediﬁﬁ
E notebook. And I just want to ask you? .
MR. BOSTIC: Objection, Your
Honor. 1It's beyond my scope and I believe Mr #
Edelin's scope.

THE COURT: I see this as beyond

the scope.
MR. WEEDE: Your Honor, it goes

into whether or not Mr. O'Rourke --

i | THE COURT: Why don't we continue
B

r this ‘at sidebar.

|

(Sidebar discussion.)

MR. WEEDE: ¥our Honor, if T may.

This goes directly -- it's my understanding that
the proctored relevance of this witness is to

put a gloss on certain things that David did,

certain things Lenore did and certain things Tom
did in connection with their legitimacy in terms
of investigation. The point of the red notebook
is, is that Tom did not engage Michael 0O'Rourke

with regard to numerous different types of
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SP9gative activities. I think that needs to

ne out to the extent the jury is going to

SOom g ) :
€ Pages fused that this is something that Tom was

om a . : ; . '
Sed doing with O'Rourke's permission or in

ou? . : <
ection with him generally.

+ Your THE COURT: gScamyeoulre . saying that

elie 6 :
LA use Tom Matusiewicz on his own under took

ther types of, quote, investigation, unquote,
a .
& beyong that showed up in Government Exhibit 60, the red

otebook, that you should inquire of this

1t goes witness whether he was involved in that?
MR. WEEDE: Correct.
Continue THE COURT: Defense, what say you?
MR. BOSTIC: The Gover;ment cannot
retry the case through every witness, however
I may. remote in terms of the testimony from what they
'ding that are#trying to ask. -And this is exactly that.
is to THE ' COURT: SBwthink-I'mugoing. to
3 did, sustain the objection.
tings Tom MR. WEEDE: All right. May I have
in terms a moment, Your Honor?
Qo0tebook § THE COURT: You may.
'Rourke MR. WEEDE: Your Honor, that's all
£ I have.
e = S
Baiis : . Hawkins Repo;tipg Service
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'THE COURT: = All right. Any
redirect?

MR. BOSTIC: Very briefly, Your
Honor.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. BOSTIC:

Q. So it's clear -- do you know what,
I'm not going to ask that. 1I'll ask this
question instead.

Are you licensed by the State of

Delaware to conduct child sexual allegation
investigations?

A. ARl A .

O And are you permitted to -- and

how would you go about, if you were told about
allegations -- strike that.

Hoy would -- would you yourself
conduct an interview on behalf of the state that
would ordinarily be done by Children Advocacy
Center?

MR. WEEDE: Objection. Beyond the
SEope Oof "Ccross.

THE COURT: I think there was a

question raised about whether Mr. Matusiewicz
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orted sexual abuse suspicions to the witness.

111 just wait and see how far it goes,

Mr. Weede. I'll give you some leeway,

Mr. Bostic, but we'll see how far.
MR. BOSTIC: Thank you.

| By MR. BOSTIC:
Qs My question again is would you be

the individual that the statutes require under

the CAC to conduct an interview with respect to
a child regarding child sexual abuse?
MR. WEEDE: Objection. ©Nothing

about the CAC was mentioned.

THE COURT: I'11l allow that answer

L

5 15 5
Go ahead, Mr. O'Rourke.

A. Just so Iimoglear, —on behalf of

the state you're asking?

at @) Yes.
A. No, sir.
o) That was what my question was
e '; E getting to.
é g And final question. Again, 1in

connection with the work that you did on behalf

of David Matusiewicz, at no time did he ask you
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to do anything improper or inconsist;ﬁ_‘
other cases you worked on regarding ﬁﬁg
custody?
A. No,“sq9T,
MR. BOSTIC: Thank you.
THE COURT: Mr. Edelin, anythi
MR. EDELIN: No, sdir. Thank
THE COURT: Government, anyth
more for Mr. O'Rourke?
MR. WEEDE: One moment, Your
Honor.
THE COURT: Okay.
MR. BOSTIC: Your Honor, I have
nothing further. Thank you. y
MR. WEEDE: Your Honor, just so we.
can put an end to this. 7
CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MR. WEEDE:
Q. Regardless of any CAC interviews,
Mr. O'Rourke, there were never any allegations
made to you about Ms. Belford engaging in any
Sexually inappropriate behavior with regard to
her kids; correct, in the context of the custody

dispute?
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A. TR 20067
Q. 20062 200772
A. R, sir.
MR. WEEDE: Thank you.
THE COURT: I was about to ask, 1is
ir. O'Rourke excused?
MR. BOSTIC: Your Honor, I thought

the government had cut the witness off.

®| By MR. BOSTIC:
il

Q. And I'm curious to know, were you

aware of any allegation of child sexual abuse?

A. I was.
@ And by whom were they made and
®
when?
A. It was after David was returned

from, I can say this, from Nicaragua, an
attorney he- engaged, Ed Medrano from Texas, Ed
Medrano is the one that spoke of those
allegations.

MR. BOSTIC: Thank you. I have
nothing else.

THE COURIL: All right. At £his
time I think the witness is excused. Thank you,

(= g
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THE COURT: Counsel, do you all

d a minute to confer on stipulations?

MS. CHAVAR: We're in the signing
hrocess, Your Honor. Just a few minutes.

THE COURT: All xight, Then 1

will retire and you will let my court staff know
when you're ready and we will reconvene in a
moment .

MS. CHAVAR: Thank you.

(Short recess.)

THE COURT: I understand that
overnight there's been further discussion about
stipulations and we've spent some time this
morning finalizing stipulations; is.that
correcet.

MR. McCALL: Yes, Your Honor.

MR. BOSTIC: Yes, Your Honor.

MR. EDELIN: Yes, Your Honor.

MR. IBRAHIM: Yes,; Your Honor.

THE COURT: In terms of

proceeding, how do you want to present

£ 22 stipulations to the jury? We're still in the
23 defense case.
2 MS. CHAVAR: Yes, Your Honor. So
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if we could just read them to the jury.

THE COURT: All -right. Is there

anything we need to do? We have a lot of work

to do later this morning in terms of jury

instructions and Rule 29. 1Is there anything

else we need to do?

MR. McANDREWS: There is. Your

Honor, we need to strike the language in the

testimony of Michael Solon.

THE COURT': Do you want to do that

here or at sidebar?

IBRAHIM: Right here.

MR.

MR. McANDREWS: Your Henor; I+l

identify it for the record. It's the transcript

of the proceeding, June 19th, 2015. Page 2,826,

the question begins at Line 22 and reads

question, and in the course of working with her,

she had a reputation for being a peaceful,

honest, law abiding person, correct? Answer

carries over to page 2,827, line 1, yes, Sl

And I believe that's the only language that we€

would strike.

Mr. Ibrahim?

THE COURT: Agreed,

MR. IBRAHIM: That is agreed.
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THE COURT: All right. 1Is there

it

ﬁ}thing else that needs my attention before we

ng in the Jjary?
MS. CHAVAR: No, Your Honor.

MR. EDELIN: Your Honor, is it the

ourt' intention once the stips are read into

the record to have Defense rest?

THE COURT: Right. And Ll see

counsel at sidebar at that point.
MR. IBRAHIM: I do have one

_stipulation to read, so I'll go after Mr. Bostic

or Ms. Chavar.

THE COURT: Is there any rebuttal
-

from the Government?

MR. McCALL: No, Your Honor.
MR. EDELIN: So you'll see us at
sidebar before we formally rest?

THE COURT: Right.

MR. McCALL: I want to read three

‘ 20 exhibits into the record. Government Exhibits
fé 21 73A through M, 74A through K, 728A and B, 240A
3% 22 through F.

| 23 MR. IBRAHIM: Along those same

24 lines, Your Honor, I provided your deputy a list
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1 of the exhibits :that were moved in for
2 organizational purposes. I have them all here
1 3 on this sheet and I just ask that they -- my
i 4 understanding they were moved in as we went .
| o THE COURT: Purposes of the
6 record?
7 MR. IBRAHIM: They are all moved
8 in exhibits, Amy Gonzalez D1 through 31.
9 : THE COURT: All right. And I
10 assume there's no objection from the Government? =
[l MR. McCALL: No, Your Honor.
12 MR. BOSTIC: During the course we
13 moved in exhibits that were qu}ished and I
14 think they are a matter of record and we're
15 « ready to go forward.
16 THE COURT: All xight. 2Again, {
1 Government, any objection? 3
18 MR. McCALL: No, Your Honor.
19 THE COURT: All right. Mr.
20 Edelin.
2% MR. EDELIN: Your Honor, I used
22 pages I think I referenced bates numbers but
23 they were from exhibits that were already in, so
24 I think --
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THE COURT: That was my sense, Mr.

n, right. It would seem to me the record
;,ow in order and we can bring back the jury
proceed to read into the record the various
gpulations that are relevant and then at that
int before the defense formally rests, I will
éee counsel at sidebar, all right. So with that
m; ask Ms. Strickland to please bring in the
Sjury.
| (Jury enters.)

THE COURT: Good morning, ladies
and gentlemen of the jury. Please be seated.

THE JURY: Good morning.,

THE COURT: First thing first,
have we ordered you lunch?

THE JURY: Yes.

THE COURT: A great deal of work
has been going on in your absence both lastnight

and this morning, during which time counsel has

C;* 20 diligently worked to find areas of agreement and
21 stipulations. I mentioned to you yesterday we
'; 22 saved a good three witnesses and in point of
o fi 23 fact, barring any unforeseen circumstance, I
24 pelieve we'll be in a position simply to
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18

19

20
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22
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introduce some additional stipulation to youy
this morning, all right. And after which~1,w£:
see the lawyers. I asked you to bring your-_.
books and crossword puzzles because we're goingj
to have other legal work to do this morning. 71
know at one point you watched me bring a rule
book to sidebar and the real rule book is here
members of the jury, this is just the USA Today
version, all right. So there's a great many
legal principles that we will be debating in
preparation for closing argument and my giving
you final instructions, because the law is an
organic being. Indeed, just on June 1lst of this
year a new decision came dowﬁ in the United
States Supreme Court arising out of a Federal
Judge's trial in Philadelphia, Judge Stegel,
that went through our Court of Appeals and 8 to
1 the Supreme Court actually agreed on something
8 to 1. What lawyers do is they are scripture
scholars. They look at the text and say what
lesson does this case teach us for this case. I
will tell you the last e-mail crossed my screen
at 10:50 Jlast might, all right. So if we go

back to revolutionary time, I'm fond of doing,
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=~ musket smoke did not clear till this
®orning. With that we're going to have further
al debate in your absence, but I've told you

1ve been working hard on that and we're going

pe ready to go,. so you will get the closing
rgument today. What time do you have lunch
oming Ms. Strickland?

MS. STRICKLAND: 11230, 1 think.
THE COURT: 11:30. Then you're
going to see lunch on the early side. At a
minimum you will hear counsel's closing
arguments today. We might or might not hear
from me, but we are at the end stage of the
case, and with that I will turn back tg the
'defense side of the courtroom and I will ask
counsel to present whatever additional evidence
by way of stipulation you have.

MS. CHAVAR: Your Honor, if I
could go to the podium?

THE COURT: You may.

MS. CHAVAR: Thank you. Good

4 morning. The following stipulations have been
KB entered by all the parties. The docket entries
- K in the matter of United States versus David
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bPsychological evaluation as pertaining to t

Laura Matusiewicz,

Matusiewicz would reflect that on November

2009, David Matusiewicz through his counserps

filed a sealed motion requesting that a

sexual abuse allegations

of his daughter, Lagy

Matusiewicz, be conducted.

motion was to gather potential information thé
he could use in mitigation at his up coming
sentencing hearing.

On November 25 the,

2009, the

Government filed a motion under seal opposing

the request for a psychological evaluation of

arguing in part that the

Court did not have jurisdiction to enter such an
order.

On December 2nd, 2009, the court
_,,-———*/

denied the motion and on May 3rd, 2011, David

Matusiewicz filed a brief and memorandum
pursuant to Title 28 United States Code Section
2255 seeking to have his 2009 conviction vacated
on the basis that his lawyer Herbertro Medrano
was ineffective.

2014,

on July 2nd, the Court

issued a memorandum and opinion denying the 28
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Deputy United States Marshal Willi,‘
testify that law enforcement agents:
seize the motorhome that David Matusi
living in while in Nicaragua and law e
did not return that motorhome to the U
Statess Thank you.

THE COURT: All right.
Mr. Ibrahim, you have a stipulation as wed

MR. IBRAHIM: Yes. Good morn:
I just have a few folks, about seven of theﬁf
government has been kind enough to stipulaté
their testimony. These folks in McAllen, Te
would have testified via video tﬁleconferenc
pardon me for reading to you.

The United States, by and through
Assistant United States Attorneys Jamie McCall,;?
Ed McAndrew and Shawn Weede, hereby enter into i
the following agreement with Amy Gonzalez.

If called to testify, the below
listed individuals will testify as follows:

William Restrepo, R-E-S-T-R-E-P-O,
M.D. Dr. Restrepo is board certified in
nephrology and works at Knapp Medical Center and

Doctors Hospital Renaissance in Edinburg. He
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lould testify that Amy Gonzalez is a nurse who

gbrked with him at Knapp and also at neighboring

hospitals. Amy is a hard working, competent

fnurse.

The second individual, another

! goctor, Sandra Esquivel, E-S-Q-U-I-V-E-L, M.D.,
and initials FACS, Fellow of the American

College of Surgeons. Dr. Esquivel is a board

certified general surgeon who works at Knapp

Medical Center. Dr. Esquivel has known Amy for

approximately six years to date and has worked
with Amy treating dialysis patients.
Dr. Esquivel would testify that Amy is a very

N
dedicated hard-working nurse who is very
attentive to her patients and always willing to
help out her fellow nurses. Amy is a very hard
working and dedicated mother as well.

Next, Joselina D. Murillo,

J-0-S-E-L-I-N-A, middle initial D, last name

‘M-U-R-I-L-L-0, a registeredvnursessmiurse

Murillo is the patient care coordinator in the
Hemodialysis Unit-at Rio Grande Regional Medical
Center in MeAllen; "Texas.

Ms. Murillo will testify that she
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has known Amy for about two years and foungd her
to be a very hard working and caring nurse,

Martin Cavazos, C—A—V—A—z—o-s,iJr;
Mr. Cawvazos, Jr. is a patient care tech at Knapp
Medical Center. He has known Amy for
five-and-a-half years and has worked with her iﬂ
the Hemodialysis Unit. Mr. Cavazos will testify
that Amy would take good care of her patients
and treated them like they were her own family
members. Amy worked well with her coworkers.

Jaime G. Guajardo, J-A-I-M-E,
middle initial G, G-U-A-J-A-R-D-0. Mr. Guajardo;
is a biomedical engineer at Knapp Medical Center%
and has worked with Amy and wogld testify that
Amy has shown nothing but compassion for her
patients.

Baldomero Mendez. Mr. Mendez is a
biomedical equipment technician at Knapp Medical ;
Center and has worked with Amy Gonzalez for two
years in the Dialysis Unit. Mr. Mendez would
testify that Amy is a compassionate, hard
working and caring nurse who always puts her

patients' needs and well being on top of her

priorities.
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And lastly, Sabino Garza.
Garza has worked with Amy Gonzalez for about

iVe years at Knapp Medical Center. Mr. Garza

4

Jbuld testify that Amy has always been a very

od coworker, loving and caring to her

coworkers and patients.

Thank you for your time.
That's all I have, Your Honor.
THE COURT: All right. Counsel, I

think at this point I'll see all of you briefly

at side-bar.

(Side-bar discussion:)

THE COURT: The defense has not
formally rested because as I know Mr. Edelin
reported to us this morning, there was some
question raised 'at the last minute by his
clienty-M3s Matusiewicz, Lenore Matusiewicz for

the record. Mr. Edelin thinks it's advisable

for the Court to colloquy Ms. Matusiewicz and
the question I have wendEeTTRere o de it in a

global and noninvasive way, might I do it-of all

three defendants so as to not single her out.
Obviously it's outside the hearing

of the jury. I know the other defendants said
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.recommendation of counsel.

no. This is the question I have crafted ang I
ask for your consideration.

Let me now address the defendantsg_ |
Each of you has a right to testify, a right not
to testify under the Fifth Amendment. Yoy have
very capable counsel and I know you have
consulted with them. It's my understanding yoy
have elected not to testify and done so
Moduntarily. Tf that is incorrect, this is your @
opportunity to be heard.

That's what I propose to ask.

MR. IBRAHIM: The only thing that
I would ask that you include in there that theirf
» I

decision not to testify is based on

THE COURT: Are you all right if I
do it globally in that way?

MR. BOSTIC: Yes.

MS. CHAVAR: Yes.

THE COURT: What we will do is
excuse the jury. Do we need to bring the jury
back and have you rest, or can we do it on the
record outside of the presence of the Jury?

MR. McANDREW: I'm okay with that,
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THE COURT: Is defense okay with

MR. IBRAHIM: I would prefer to

jformally rest in front of the jury and then we
éfcan do the colloquy, however you want to do it.

MR. McANDREW: That's a
technicality.

THE COURT: That's a technical
problem that is of concern to me, otherwise I
would do it that was, but I don't know that we
can. I just don't know whether we try the
jury's patience if we march them out and march
them back in just to say we rested.

MR. IBRAHIM: Here 1s my concern.
In terms of the record, the jury hear that the
government has rested and also that the defense

has rested.

THE COURT: We can do that before

j% 20 closing, instead of bringing them back.
21 MR. IBRAHIM: Yes, perfect.
22 THE COURT: Why don't we do it
23 that way. If we have a plan, I will excuse the
1 2 jury and I will engage in the colloquy.
%
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(End of side-bar.)

THE COURT: Members of the jury,
we are now going to send you back to the jury

room while we have a great legal debate. All

right. And so again, I thank you for your
patience. I assure you, it's important work
we'll be doing. We will call upon you later,
So with that, let's rise in honor of our ey .

(Jury leaving the courtroom at
9:42 a.m.)

THE: COQURT: All right. Please be
seated.

Counsel, as previously done in
criminal cases, I like to just take a moment,
please, and address the defendants as a group.

Mr. Matusiewicz, Ms. Matusiewicz
and-then Ms. Gonzalez. All right. As I'"m sure
you are aware, each of you has a right to
testify, or a right not to testify under the
Fifth Amendment and I will of course instruct
the jury that exercising that right may not in
any way be held against you.

You have very capable counsel and

I know you have conferred with your lawyers, and
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j}nderstand that based upon the recommendations
;Qyour counsel, you have decided to exercise
’gur Fifth Amendment right not to testify, and
;hat you have done so voluntarily. All right.

;md.so I put that on the record just to make

%ure. If I'm incorrect in that, this would be
your opportunity to be heard.

All right. And hearing that I am
not incorrect, I will take it that you have

voluntarily exercised your right, s RNS R

role as the Judge to make certain that we )
All oF Fthe [(anye—s
confirm. that. Thank you for your attention. ere ff%}\q Ty e e e

Counsel, when the jury comes back, phich one df S

» cho 2l TEshty an ¥
Fhen Fhey ec'de’
the government formally rest, and we will Ho) none dIF

we ol owed

I will then have the defense formally rest and

proceed with closing argument. But I understand shou (o ¢ :
Fhe. - /@ COMm €N d&aS an .
gt this point that there may be motions under

Rule 29 that counsel wishes to present. And we

may proceed in any order.

MR. IBRAHIM: 1I'll go first, if
that's okay.

THE COURT: ' 211 right.

MR. IBRAHIM: Your Honor, pursuant

to Federal Rule 29, I would move bhewCourt. to

S
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dismiss the indictment against Amy Gonzaleg

would renew my basis that was presented to
Court“pretrial.

What I would ask the Court to
consider at this point now that evidence has
been submitted to trial and in light of recent
Supreme Court decisions, when the Court looks a;
the evidence that has been presented against Ami
Gonzalez, .it's a hybrid type of evidence. And .
focusing on initially at the YouTube videos, I
would suggest to the Court that the evidence

that was presented by the government regarding

i Sty o

the YouTube videos, particularly given the basis;

B

by which that information was developed, this

wasn't a circumstance where Amy Gonzalez

conducted this surveillance and prepared a

report, it.was?;ruly a situation where a lawful

licensed investigator conducted an investigation &

created a video. All that was done by

Ms. Gonzalez was that video was posted to

YouTube and it was posted in a format that is

protected by her free speech.

In that document, what was also

posted as a polygraph exam, the polygraph exam
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s in evidence as Exhibit:144. 1It's a document

éhat is done by a licensed Texas polygra ol

lgnd again, that information was put on there and

LT Sl

#:+ was not directed at anyone in particular.

Now, one of the things we learned

at trial was, in fact, Ms. Belford not only

viewed it, but commented on<£E;__éEg_EE§_2§£3£gﬂ

of her comments themselves reflected entirely

what YouTube and that posting was designed to

do, open up a debate about a subject matter that

Qas {ifiEEEEE_i2_El_SilEEELé_QQﬁiLi°ﬂ~baseé—on
the questions asked o

Ms. Belford chose to respond to

N

that and indeed refuted and made commentary that
with the initials LMAO, which was testified to
by Mr. Solon as to what that meant, that it is
clear that that was a forum.protected by the
First Amendment. So to have that evidence go
out to the jury as information would be in
violation, I would suggest to the Court, of what

was presented and protected in Blonis 4w the

sense that that was presented not with any

intent by Ms. Gonzalez to create any kind of

threat or fear or harassment whatsoever. And
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subjectively when that was posted, her onl

purpose was to exercise her First Amendmen:

rdsght .
-l

There is additional evidence that
is presented in the form of e-mails that are
internal e-mails. When I suggest an internal{
E-mail, an E-mail between my client and other
people that are her friends and family. I woul
suggest to the Court that those private
communications are protected by the First
Amendment. It's the opportunity for my client
to express her feeling amongst individuals close
to herself.

>

These were not directed to anyone
outside that circular group, and for those
reasons, those e-mails do not reflect or cannot
convey an objective intent truly, they were
subjective, they were personal type e-mails.

The last set of information is
documents that were sent and published by my
client. And largely, Judge, those were greeting

EifEi;__EE_ZEE,E,LQSary*__~

And, for example, you have a

situation when Amy Gonzalez contacts, and I'm

Hawkins Reporting Service
715 North King Street - Wilmington, Delaware 19801
(302) 658-6697 FAX (302) 658-8418

A5354




5605

—

pot. going to. by, -I'm-just going to- ¢call her
Mrs. B, the woman who was a CC director at
St. John the Beloved, and she indicates she got

a voicemail, but that was it. There was no

further pursuit by Amy Gonzalez, but what you
did hear and what has been presented in evidence

is Egere was a thank vou card that was sent

ultimately where Ms. Belford, Ms, Belford .

accepted the rosary and gave it to her daughter.
R e

So at the end of the day, Judge, Th, NE oloda—i | F

ol

for Rule 29 purposes, the government has a /kyﬁ/€> aatad ‘Qf%i,
so deathl— afre'd

r Feahd ofF o A«
oarsed, that parts should not go out to the e '%#nﬂ/ 70”L9

nighbred grouping of evidence that ought to be

jury, and to the extent that that evidence 7%) Zyﬁﬂc/ Yar o~
serves as the basis for a Rule 29 or rather the T hark Yoo~ /Z”/éz.p
jovernment's case against Amy Gonzalez as far as
>ither the conspiracy or the cyber stalking,
vhich I suggest are really the same, since she
is not charged with the interstate stalking, she
ls charged with consistorial acts, based on

"hose communications and the YouTube that there

s insufficient evidence to be sent to the jury

-0 put Amy Gonzalez at risk of up to life

imprisonment for the charges she's facing.
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1 THE COURT: All right. 711y

2 from the government.
3 MR. MCANDREW: Thank you, Youp . |
: 4 Honor.
Why opes
Gueﬂde,Agf Your Honor, I begin with a
A@Vﬁ O B2

vieuwse< 5 standard under Rule 29, and the standard is on?

//74Mf masy this is a question of sufficiency of the
fﬁu[."’ (/1&9/ £

o Fhe evidence to go to the jury. And the Court is ;
75/905A%%f7 , : , e -l TSRO
§334 g$%Zsaw r?qured to view the evidence in a light most
10 favorable to the government including all
i rgasonable inferences that can be drawn f?gm,it}
12 B The real question is whether ther{
13 is sufficient evidence on each of the elements
14 of crime to proceed to the jur;. We are not in}
15 the business at this point of weighing the
16 evidence or assessing the credibility of the
177 witnesses.
18 And the defendant's burden is
19 according to the Third Circuit very heavy, and
20 confined to cases of Rule 29 relief particularl
21 at this stage of the case for the prosecution
22 failure dis €lear.
23 | The Court has the option here of
24 deferring the motion until after the return of
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i?e verdict with no prejudice to the defense
lbecause the standard would be to take a snapshot
Ebf the evidence as it existed at the close of
:evidence, actually the close of the government's
, case as well, and evaluate on that standard.

I'm not going to go through the
elements unless Your Honor wants me to of the

crimes, but for purposes -~ TY1l try to cut. ko

a(wff/,}\z[ fr AHUSA /&uf,gg the sehase .

,’n pov. ds sentenc ng ~r
T ternabenc/ Parentfeal The interstate elements as I'll

Ldneohey 1~ 2009 A€ e
stodes V The . call them under both statutes, really aren't 1in
hod o6n mMS. Leifprel From
her slafement £ ¢ ,,‘,\ he—
v, chrm /mpa(f S fFede oy
thal she sen) fo fhe cous [EEVEL,
fié\ﬂ')u{f/\ /J/’Dha/ﬁ'uf} she nofed

fhe) CoEN o tA.s Way - interstat
/nt Fhe fuhure,she ol
be uwa/hAs/Vuanec}g
whether rAhere—w il pe

dispute. The fact that there is interstate
the fact that there was the use of

s
e facilities and interstate commerce.

There is I will submit ample

ce of reasonable fear and substantial

retalahon Fom Dai'd eviden

w'yzfﬁﬁﬁ”hm“f the g S

— 27 — 1-_r__ﬁ___emotional stress as a result of the conduct. We
T don't woanf 0 5‘704_/‘4

AR Lad FEBE 43 heard from Katy Moffa, Laura Matusiewicz, the

aS

J/VLSf _(,_‘:i (ﬁ"f“\ﬁ:c"“( .
JU¢. chrisbn= feored Oav.d jury heard the voice of Christine Belford, the
B 7 he K& i . ; ; :
tj“tg c?aff f;y: che e-mails of Christine Belford discussing that
Nt (, ‘ .

traly Feared Qaviel ev any
0F ws why d, dA¥ she A/lC

: s+ Un P
b sl i . What we're really left with : Lo g 517

fear and emotional distress.

A

Abuse) é“gc".hk/ w S a- <7
she wasS el adane how Sl 2 : ;
g TE cpe fee felf criminal intent element. And that is actually
v & r cpe ek
Feacfud Hharassed o7 Stelbed :
2 the element that takes this case, for present

< - s
why 4 a~fF she Aot
chaorged v convi cte d A
dc",:—\g sd '7
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1 purposes at least, out of the purview of the
2 First Amendment. And that's_because_under-the.
3 statute, and I'll distinguish Elonis in a
4 minute, we have to specifically address ang
5 prove to the jury and have them find unanimOUSfi
6 that we have satisfied by a reasonable doubt thi
7 standard of showing a criminal intent to do onei
8 of the following things,\harass, place under
9 surveillance with intent to injure, harass, killl
10 or intimidate, cause substantial emotional
13 distress, injure or kill, any one of those
12 suffices. If you just take harassment, becauseg
13 >6'\iELE’EEQEL—Lhﬁ—JLmEﬁu;;EEKQLL and if you look at 3
: A ;

the record that includes I believe over 600

W lhen
dge £ exhibits at this point, there are numerous
3waKC1&anfnf ,
(Q%U‘A( communications between and among the
o. LT FE . G : 1
= 2 coconspirators and out to third parties and the
Sentenc€ | '
digital public at large.
That the jury could find were
20 published and sent out to a third person for thel
21 purpose of harassing Ms. Belford. Now, the
22 defense is obviously of the view that it wasn't 8
23 for purposes of harassment, that it was just fOi
24 purposes of conveying information Mrs. GonzaleZ%
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;elieved should be shared. Thatls.fine,;- butiat
%his stage of the proceeding there's sufficient
vidence from which a jury could conclude in the
% tire context of the stalking conduct that this
.was done for purposes of harassment. I'm going
ito dispense with the litany of all the evidence
unless Your Honor really needs me to --

THE COURT: I'm familiar with the
record, Mr. McAndrew.

MR. McANDREW: Very well. But if
you go beyond harassment, because this 1is
information for first amendment purposes, we
also have surveillance and that's not what we've
been referring to as the defamation p;ong of
this'case, the dissemination of information to
third parties for purposes of intimidating,
harassing or causing distress. These are
communications that -- to the extent that they
are communications, because they are also

physical acts designed to spy, to gain

21 information either directly or through third

22 parties about the targets of the surveillance.
I ;iv 23 That we think is clearly beyond the purview. I

24 think there's sufficient evidence for purposes
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to go to the jury on that point in terms of :
g
criminal intent and certainly beyond the Purviewi

of the first amendment.

I guess now is a good time to

address Elonis. It's a different statute
completely. e s "85 (e) . It's the interstate
transportation of threat statute. What's

missing from Elonis is explicit in 2261 (a).

THE COURT: Scienter.

MR. McANDREW: Exactly. And what
the Supreme Court had to grapple with in the
Third Circuit before that was what Scienter
requirements should apply to tﬁe statute. Here
we don't have that problem. So if you were to
take the arguments in Elonis and find for the
petitioner on every single one of them, you end
up essentially where we are under 2261 with
these express Scienter requirements to prove
intent to do certain things. And all of those
things, I want to point out, involve engaging in
conduct as opposed to speech, so you have speech
that ‘could be integral to conduct that is
criminal in nature. You have speech that could

be false and defamatory.
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Of course it's law that the first
amendment does not protect false statements. So
we think there's sufficient evidence that the
statements were false, because we have that from
numerous witnesses, we have it from the victims,
the inconsistencies we see throughout the
documentation of the Defendants themselves about
their allegations, all suggest that there's
sufficient evidence for that purpose.

I would point the Court in a
summary fashion to the case law we cite in our
trial brief, where we cite specifically to
2261 (a) case law that includes, on sufficiency
challenges, all of this type of evide;ce as
beigg more than sufficient. And in particular,
I'l1l address the Court's attention to United
States versus Lee, which is the new First
Circuit case that came down, I think on our
first day of testimony, June 12th.

THE COURT:S EEswa's, yes.

MR. McANDREW: Which devotes an
entire paragraph to the sufficiency of evidence
challenge, but some of the facts there are

similar to ours. There were more direct threats
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than we had in our case; but there's ; lot

OT
surveillance, there's interstate travel, th;
actually the stopping of the vehicle ip route
the house, it looks like, that had a lot of,;

same materials that we found in the vehicle

this case. The Defendant made an argument thl

¢

I think Amy Gonzalez makes here, and that is%
that some of the statements that have been

transmitted were really hyperbole, they were
statements of belief or just running off at ti
mouth for lack of a better phrase. And the “
Court rejected that and said well, that's one}
construction, but the jury was obviously free;

>

decide otherwise, which they did. So we thiné

the jury should be permitted that option heref

well.

THE COURT: T understand the
Government's argument. All right. Thank youfé
counsel. ﬂ

MR. McANDREW: Thanks.

THE COURT: I agree with Mr.

Ibrahim that there are innocent explanations fo

much of the conduct that thf_ESXEEEEEEE~EEE——’~
e ———

charged. At the same time the Government has

——
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put forth a broader context in which there are
lessons and explanations for some of the conduct
in which Mrs. Gonzalez has allegedly engaged.

Given the very high standard that
exists for a Rule 29 motion, I'm persuaded that
there is a basis on which a reasonable jury
could infer criminal intent. The first

amendmeént issue is of significance to the Court.

I addressed it at length in my opinion of March
2015 in which I differentiated those areas of
speech which are protected and those which are
not.

As counsel knows, I'm going to

L3
cover that in my charge to the jury. And so to

the extent that the jury concludes that the oeald  yob

edelr falx
accusations are true, then the defense may rely {W(%q{“@k'

le‘}* cA (C)(ﬁ,e—
why CEL e
of acquittal. :But to the extentthat the jury ([ecre ‘V’“5

upon that as a basis for asking for a judgment

e 3 OO o (d»

o 1 1 47

were to conclude the representations are false,
they are per se defamatory to accuse someone of
child abuse, and on that basis, there would be
grounds for taking it outside the umbrella of
the first amendment. But again, we're going to

address those issues that protect the
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Defendants' rights as a matter of charge:
Ty,

I'"ve studied the Elonis case-
it strikes me there is a critical -differenda
between the statute there which the Court fo
to be deficient and the statute here. And th

is here there is indeed a specific requirement

of intent in Scienter and that's going to be

driven home very clearly in the Court's charge.
And in Elonis the Court found that lacking and
note that across our juris prudence when that's

lacking in the statute the courts have written

SEEEET T Hexre, in fFact, the Congress wrote it.in.
And so I don't find this case s;ffers from the
sameadeTect as"Efonis. I'm also struck. by the
fact that in Elonis the poster of the material
in question explicitly said I'm not serious and
these are not true allegations and indeed was
engaging in what he claimed was parody of the
rapper Eminem and whereas here as I understand
it there were serious allegations that Ms.
Belford was a child abuser that were intended

and meant to be true.

SO Eorrallsthosembasis- b find=that
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re's a sufficient record that the Government

established for the case to proceed and on

at basis will deny the Rule 29 motion, but

ithout prejudice to renewal of other motions at

he appropriate time post trial. We have other

“motions, LRSS uEe .

MR. EDELIN: I would ask that your

record reflect that I am also raising a Rule 29

motion. Your Honor has addressed most of my

concerns in what you've just recited, but I do

want my record protected.

THE COURT: Wiaisr, siir. A B

treat Mr. Edelin as having made the Rule 29

motion and I will incorporate my reasorring and

deem it denied. Mr. Bostic.

MR. BOSTIC: Yes, Your Honor. As

the Court is aware Rule 29 permits a submission

at the end of t+he trial within 14 days and we

will submit a written Rule 29 motion at that

time.
21 THE COURT: All right. i 8 1
22 then consider that deferred and accept that as
23 proper procedure ander Rile 29. All right.
| 24 counsel, I believe that brings us pack to the
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subject of jury instructions, am I @

If I mayg, I -think we @
cyber record yesterday afternoon, but:
put it on the actual record in terms. é
different rulings.

The Government has asked for
instructions which I'm going to deny. The
Government has asked for a consciousness
guilt instruction based upon statements th
David Matusiewicz purportedly made to law
enforcement while still in the courthouse
following the shooting. I'm going to deny th
because I believe that if the statements were
inwfact,inade, and "I do" £ind the; were placed"
into evidence on redirect, they could have as
well been statements intended to exculpate his
ﬁather. In denying the'instruction, I am not
limiting the ability of counsel to argue the
point, I'm merely not going to give it the
imprimatur of the Court as a separate point of
law for the jury to consider.

The Government has also asked for
a provision that's frequently given in some

other circuits that proof may be disjunctive.
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